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Background: 
The government is considering changing strategy to buying a family of loaders (Light Type II – 2.5 CY, Heavy Type I – 4.5 CY, and Heavy Type II – 5.0 CY).  The award will be on an all or none basis.  Based on current funding projections, we anticipate buying 6 test vehicles (3 Heavy Types I/II and 3 Light Type II), and 22 production Heavy Types I/II in the first year.  

TACOM is exploring the possibility of using a long term, 20 year contract to procure the Family of Loaders.  Such a contract would be awarded on a firm fixed price basis.  The contract would include a base year and 19 option years.  The purpose of this survey is to (1) determine how interested industry is in participating in a 20 year contract for Loaders and (2) elicit industry’s concerns/issues/suggestions about such a long term contract.  This survey is for planning purposes only and does not mean that the Government will issue a solicitation and/or award a contract as a result of this survey.

Aspects of this program to consider are the following:


As part of such a contract, the Government would like the ability to trade in/exchange old loader models for newer models when they come available, provided the details of pricing not just new models, but the exchange value of old models, could be worked out.

NOTE:  In the recent past, TACOM has been issuing five year requirements type contracts for Army construction equipment.  A requirements contract calls for the Government to use that contract to fill any Army requirement of that commodity during the life of the contract.  Requirements contracts are limited to 5 years, but with appropriate approvals can be extended to 10 years.
The contract mechanism we now contemplate would have a single contract quantity with a succession of options.  Unlike recent requirements contracts, the Government would not have any obligation to exercise an option.  Therefore, it is important for industry to understand that the only quantity that would be guaranteed is the first year (basic) quantity awarded with the contract.  It is important to note that, while the Government intends that options under such a contract would be exercised each year, there is no guarantee that this would be the case.  The Government also intends, however, that even where any given option exercise period lapses without an additional award being made, the Government’s right to unilaterally order additional supplies in successive years would remain intact.
One concern we have with a long term contract is the ability to estimate prices far into the future.  Our goal is to obtain contract prices that are disciplined by the commercial marketplace.  We would like to be able to evaluate prices in all years, so that we could properly trade-off price against all non-price factors in the source selection process.
In light of the above, we ask that you please answer these questions:
1)  Are you willing to accept a long term contract (20 years) as outlined above?  (Basic contract with numerous options.)

2)  What constitutes a catalog price?  Is it actually published?  Do you establish catalog prices at the same time each year?  If so, when?
3)  What is your commercial pricing structure?  What is your most favored customer discount?  What qualifications does a most favored customer have?  The Government has historically received further discounts from the most favored customer.  Therefore, what additional discount beyond your most favored customer discount could the Government receive?
5)  Would you be willing to provide commercial sales information so that we can verify we are getting the most favored customer price throughout the term of the contract?
6)  Would you be willing to accept a fixed price with economic price adjustment type contract using a provision like FAR Clause 52.216-3?  
7)  What four variables most impact a change in your prices over a long period of time?  In other words, if there were an adjustment mechanism in the contract, what would you recommend the price adjustment be based on?
8)  What would be your recommended method/formula of adjusting the contract prices during the life of a very long-term contract, based on your commercial prices?
9)  How often do you go through a model change?  When do you project your next model change?  What constitutes a model change?

10)  Would you be willing and able to project unit prices for model changes over the term of the contract?  Or at least have a not to exceed ceiling for model changes?

11)  Do you have price breaks between various quantity ranges?  If so, what quantity ranges are applicable?
12)  Do you have an established program to exchange/trade in older loaders for new loaders?  Are you willing to let the government exchange old vehicles for new ones at the time of a model change?  Please provide an example of what you have done in the past.


13)  Do you have any additional suggestions/recommendations you would like to make on how the government can structure a long-term, priced contract?


Since we are in the acquisition planning stage, request your responses, comments and questions be sent via email to Maria Kraus at krausm@tacom.army.mil and copy furnish KlaftD@tacom.army.mil no later than 10 Nov 04.  We welcome any comments submitted after this time, although they may not be in time for our acquisition planning consideration.
